
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Tysa 
Baeumel at (909) 797-5117 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the board meeting 
packet are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second 
Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us  
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Wednesday, July 20, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors 
on matters within its jurisdiction.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete 
a speaker’s request form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board 
meeting. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the 
Board of Directors to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no discussion of 
these items prior to the time the board considers the motion unless members of the board, the 
administrative staff, or the public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed from the 
Consent Calendar.   

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting – July 6, 2016 

B. Payment of Bills 

1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts 

2. Ratify General Expenses for June 2016 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on June 30, 2016 [Director 
Memorandum No. 16-066 - Page 33 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board receives and files the 
unaudited financial report as presented. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 1 of 99



 

 
Page 2 

B. Authorization to Post Delinquent Accounts to the Property Tax Rolls of San 
Bernardino County and Riverside County [Director Memorandum No. 16-067 - 
Page 62 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopts Resolution 2016-18 
for San Bernardino County and Resolution 2016-19 for Riverside County 
Posting Delinquent Charges to the Property Taxes. 

C. Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2016-05 to Provide Sewer Service 
to the Private Development of Assessor’s Parcel Number 411-190-036 [Director 
Memorandum No. 16-068 - Page 71 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board approves Development 
Agreement No. 2016-05 as presented. 

D. Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 5 for Krieger & Stewart to Provide Additional 
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Construction of 
Reservoir R-12.4, a 6.0 Million Gallon Water Storage Reservoir in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 16-069 - Page 78 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board approves Amendment No. 1 
to Task Order No. 5 for a sum not to exceed $102,600. 

E. Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-20 Declaring Property, Equipment and Vehicles 
Surplus to the Needs of the Yucaipa Valley Water District [Director Memorandum 
No. 16-070 - Page 85 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board Adopt Resolution No. 2016-
20 as presented. 

F. Purchase of Imported Water for Calendar Year 2017 [Director Memorandum No. 
16-071 - Page 88 of 99] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the District staff to 
purchase imported water from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District and the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for Calendar Year 2017. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS 

VIII. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

A. July 26, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

B. July 27, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. - San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance at the 
City of Banning 

C. August 3, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 

D. August 9, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

E. August 17, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

F. August 24, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. - San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance at the 
City of Banning 

G. August 30, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

H. September 7, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 2 of 99



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 3 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

July 6, 2016 at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Bruce Granlund, Director 

Ken Munoz, Director  
Tom Shalhoub, Director 

Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Jack Nelson, Assistant General Manager 
Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
John Hull, Public Works Manager 
Ron McCall, Senior Plant Operator 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 Lonni Granlund, President  

Jay Bogh, Vice President 
David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 

 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Linda Shelton, Customer 

David Duron, Customer 
Bill Dickson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  
David Fenn, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  
John Jeter, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Leonard Stevenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

  

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District was called to order by Director Bruce Granlund at 6:00 
p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second Street, 
Yucaipa, California. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Director Bruce Granlund led the pledge of allegiance. FLAG SALUTE 

The roll was called and Director Bruce Granlund, Director Ken 
Munoz, and Tom Shalhoub were present.  Director Jay Bogh and 
Director Lonni Granlund were absent. 

ROLL CALL 

There were no public comments. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Director Tom Shalhoub moved to approve the consent calendar and 
Director Ken Munoz seconded the motion. 

 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting – June 15, 2016 

 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 4 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 3 

Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the following items: 
 Information about the California Water Fix was included in the 

board packet pursuant to a request for information by Director 
Ken Munoz. 

 The District staff is working with Bonnie Johnson, City 
Manager of the City of Calimesa and Jeff Davis, General 
Manager of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency to develop 
a pathway for new development to purchase additional water 
supplies. 

 The Yucaipa Valley Water District is working with the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for the purchase of 
additional brineline and treatment capacity.  The additional 
capacity is expected to be owned by Yucaipa Valley Water 
District on July 7, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

 DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, 
Director Ken Munoz moved and Director Tom Shalhoub seconded a 
motion to ratify a 20% water conservation standard based on self-
certification of supply reliability calculations for the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 16-063 
RATIFICATION OF THE 

YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT 

SELF-CERTIFICATION 
OF SUPPLY 

RELIABILITY FOR 
THREE ADDITIONAL 

YEARS OF DROUGHT 
PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 864.5 OF 
TITLE 23 OF THE 

CALIFORNIA CODE OF 
REGULATIONS 

Following a staff presentation by Water Resource Manager Jennifer 
Ares, Director Tom Shalhoub moved and Director Ken Munoz 
seconded a motion to authorize District staff to enter into a contract 
with Villalobos and Associates for a sum not to exceed $72,200. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 16-064 
AUTHORIZATION TO 

CONTRACT WITH 
RUTH VILLALOBOS 
AND ASSOCIATES 

FOR THE PERMITTING 
OF RECHARGE 

OPERATIONS AT THE 
WILSON CREEK 

SPREADING BASINS 

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, 
Director Ken Munoz moved and Director Tom Shalhoub seconded a 
motion to authorize the purchase of 1,206 acre feet of imported water 
from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for a sum not 
to exceed $142,790.40. 

DM 16-065 
CONSIDERATION TO 

PURCHASE 
ADDITIONAL 

IMPORTED WATER 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 5 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 3 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

FROM THE SAN 
BERNARDINO VALLEY 

MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 
2016 

Reports by Board Members 

 Director Tom Shalhoub reported on the Western Coalition of 
Arid States (WESTCAS) meeting held on June 21st to June 
24th. 

 Director Tom Shalhoub reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency meeting held on July 5, 2016. 

 Director Tom Shalhoub reported on the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District regular board meeting held 
on July 5, 2016. 

 Director Tom Shalhoub reported on the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District board workshop meeting 
held on July 6, 2016. 

BOARD REPORTS 

 Director Ken Munoz commented on a recent Letter to the Editor 
in the News-Mirror that expressed gratitude for a District 
employee that helped a customer identify a flat vehicle tire.  
Director Ken Munoz expressed his appreciation for District staff. 

 Director Tom Shalhoub commented on the ability for the District 
staff to work well together as a team. 

 Director Bruce Granlund commented on the current status of 
Lake Oroville and Lake Shasta. 

DIRECTOR 
COMMENTS 

Director Bruce Granlund called attention to the announcements listed 
on the agenda.   

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 6 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 7 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 8 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 9 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 10 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 11 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 12 of 99



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 13 of 99



 

 

July 7, 2016 
 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 
 
We are engaged to audit the financial statements of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District) for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our 
audit.  We would also appreciate the opportunity to meet with you to discuss this information further since a two-
way dialogue can provide valuable information for the audit process. 
 
Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated November 12, 2015, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 
 
As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of the District.  Such considerations are solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will also perform tests of the District’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is not an objective of our audit. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI) to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Our responsibility with respect to the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of 
Contributions (RSI), which supplement the basic financial statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  However, the RSI will not be audited and, because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, we 
will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We have not been engaged to report on the Transmittal Letter, which accompanies the financial statements but are 
not RSI.  Our responsibility with respect to this other information in documents containing the audited financial 
statements and auditor’s report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report.  We have 
no responsibility for determining whether this other information is properly stated.  This other information will 
not be audited and we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Planned Scope, Timing of the Audit, and Other 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 14 of 99



 
 

 

State’s Delta smelt plan calls for 
more water flowing to sea 

 

For the first time in years, 
Northern California’s rivers are 
roaring and its reservoirs are filled 
almost to the brim. So why isn't 
more water being pumped to 
Southern California? The answer 
involves the ravaged status of 
three key fish species.  Ryan 
Sabalow The Sacramento Bee  

 

With Delta smelt numbers at all-
time lows, state officials on 
Tuesday released a list of more 
than a dozen projects they’re 
hoping to undertake in the next 
few years in a last-ditch effort to 
stave off the fish’s extinction. 

One of those plans is sure to be 
contentious.  The “Delta Smelt 
Resiliency Strategy” released Tuesday by the California Natural Resources Agency calls 
for allowing between 85,000 and 200,000 acre-feet of extra water to wash out to sea this 
summer to bolster smelt habitat. 

That’s no small amount: 200,000 acre-feet is equal to a quarter of Folsom Lake’s capacity, 
though not all the amount released would come from Folsom.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 15 of 99



Federal dam operators say the state’s plans are 
a tad too ambitious. 

 “I would call that part a little bit strongly 
worded,” U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
spokesman Shane Hunt said Monday after 
reviewing the state’s proposal. “We’re fairly 
confident we’ll get some water, but I don’t think 
we’ll get anywhere close to the top end of this 
range that’s in this document.” 

The document calls for “a variety of methods” 
to achieve such large outflows, including 
buying water from willing sellers, changing how 
water is exported from the Delta or releasing 
water stored behind Central Valley dams. The 
plan also calls for 250,000 acre-feet to be 
released to the Pacific Ocean next summer. 

Agricultural groups in the San Joaquin Valley have fretted for weeks about the first-ever 
summertime outflows to protect the smelt.  

Last month, 15 members of Congress from California sent a letter urging the Obama 
administration to reject such a plan out of concern it would lead to Delta pumping 
restrictions that would “significantly reduce the water supply available to Californians.”  

Hunt said his agency has no plans to cut water deliveries for now. Instead, he said his 
agency is working to buy water from contractors and perhaps to secure water stored for 
hydroelectricity. Mark Cowin, director of the state Department of Water Resources, said 
his agency also has no plans to purchase water or to cut deliveries to contractors in order 
to bolster this summer’s flows to benefit the smelt.  

Other projects outlined in the state’s smelt plan include: 

 Aggressively eradicating nonnative aquatic weeds and reducing toxic algae blooms 
harmful to smelt in certain parts of the Delta. 

 Releasing more water through the Yolo Bypass into the north Delta to create more 
zooplankton that smelt eat. Sacramento Valley rice farmers are already making 
such releases. 

 Adding sediment, gravel and sand to key areas of the estuary to improve habitat. 
 Operating infrastructure in the Suisun Marsh differently to congregate the fish into 

more-favorable areas.  
 Restoring 5,530 acres of tidal wetlands. 
 Providing additional funding to Sacramento-area governments to reduce 

stormwater contaminants polluting the estuary.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 16 of 99



 No longer releasing back into the Delta any nonnative predatory fish that may eat 
smelt when they’re captured at state and federal fish screens.  

 Consolidating the two small captive populations of Delta smelt into one breeding 
and research facility in Rio Vista. 

State officials say that each of the projects outlined in the plan is scheduled to begin or 
be completed within the next three years.  

The proposed actions come at a critical time for Delta smelt. 

In early June, the state Department of Fish and Wildlife released the results of spring 
trawling surveys that track adult fish.  The surveys found just handfuls of fish across the 
huge area where they are known to spawn.  The low catches were a marked drop from 
even the record low numbers of Delta smelt tallied in 2015’s trawls. 

Based on that data, federal officials say there are likely just 13,000 fish left in the estuary 
this year, a stunning collapse from where the fish were just four decades ago. At that 
time, Delta smelt were among the most numerous fish in the estuary, with populations 
in the millions. 

 
Source: http://www.sacbee.com/news/state/california/water-and-drought/article89089322.html  
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 17 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 18 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 19 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 20 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 21 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 22 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 23 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 24 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 25 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 26 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 27 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 28 of 99



Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 29 of 99



 

Source: http://resources.ca.gov/docs/Delta-Smelt-Resiliency-Strategy-FINAL070816.pdf  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 30 of 99



 

 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures.  Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial 
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity.  We will generally 
communicate our significant findings at the conclusion of the audit.  However, some matters could be 
communicated sooner, particularly if significant difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is 
needed to overcome the difficulties or if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion.  We will also 
communicate any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional 
standards. 
 
If any member of the Board is aware of matters that have a material bearing on the financial statements taken as a 
whole (such as those described above in items 1-4), please contact me at (909) 466-4410 or by email at 
pwhite@vtdcpa.com by August 8, 2016. 
 
We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 12, 2016 and issue our report no later than October 1, 2016.  
Phil White is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the report or 
authorizing another individual to sign it. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Phil White, Partner 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 31 of 99



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 32 of 99



 

 

 

Director Memorandum 16-066 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 

Subject: Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on June 30, 2016 

Recommendation: That the Board receives and files the unaudited financial report as 
presented. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. The report has been divided into six sections to clearly disseminate information 
pertaining to the financial status of the District.  Please remember that the following financial 
information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance Report 
[Detailed information can be found on page 5 to 6 of 29] 

 
The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 
 

Fund Source
Operating 

Funds
Restricted 

Funds
Total 

Funds
Water Division $7,113,000.02 $2,549,418.56 $9,662,418.58
Sewer Division $13,111,561.80 ($4,414,308.61) $8,697,253.19
Recycled Water Division $1,922,236.85 $394,034.32 $2,316,271.17

Total $22,146,798.67 ($1,470,855.73) $20,675,942.94  
 
Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy.   
 

Check Register  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 7 to 11 of 29] 

 
The check register lists each check processed during the month of June 2016.  The District 
processed 266 checks during the month of June for a total sum of $1,343,882.26.  All checks are 
reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, and usually signed by the General 
Manager and one Director, but may be signed by two Directors. 
 
The Controller will make any check, invoice or supporting documentation available for review to 
any board member upon request.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 33 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 2 of 29 

 

 
Financial Account Information 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 12 to 15 of 29] 
 

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account.  The 
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and 
electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of 
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury notes and bills 
are booked at cost. 
 
The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.  
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 

Investment Summary  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 16 to 17 of 29] 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. 
 

Monthly Revenue Allocation 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 18 to 19 of 29] 

 
During the month of June 2016 the District’s deposit checking account received a sum total of 
$1,788,352.23 in revenues from the following categories: 
 A total of $1,540,905.56 was received from 14,598 customers for utility bill payments.  This is 

the total amount of utility bill payments received from water, sewer and recycled services. 
 A total of $2,386.50 was received for construction meter deposits, customer deposits and 

internet fee payments. 
 A total of $214,265.13 was received from miscellaneous water related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).       
 A total of $30,325.63 was received from miscellaneous sewer related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).     
 A total of $469.41 was received from miscellaneous recycled related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).   
    

 
Fiscal Year 2016 Budget Status 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 20 to 28 of 29] 
 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2016 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 34 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 3 of 29 

 

Division Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water 13,412,500 887,566 10,927,279 81.47%
Sewer 11,820,000 931,235 10,744,622 90.90%
Recycled Water 537,250 48,248 384,130 71.50%

District Revenue 25,769,750 1,867,049 22,056,031 85.59%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water Resources 5,050,200 399,563 4,355,380 86.24%
Public works 2,385,800 214,123 2,233,221 93.60%
Administration 3,682,486 225,022 3,865,000 104.96%
Long Term Debt 2,294,014 0 2,294,014 100.00%
Asset Acquisition   0 0 36,249 0.00%

TOTAL 13,412,500 838,708 12,783,864 95.31%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Treatment 3,789,816 260,695 3,347,638 88.33%
Administration 3,151,840 251,972 3,105,250 98.52%
Environmental Control 982,300 91,695 1,041,550 106.03%
Long Term Debt 3,896,044 0 3,831,725 98.35%
Asset Acquisition-Palmer 0 0 75,471 0.00%

TOTAL 11,820,000 604,362 11,401,634 96.46%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Administration 537,250 55,032 729,009 135.69%

TOTAL 537,250 55,032 729,009 135.69%

District Expenses 25,769,750 1,498,102 24,914,507 96.68%

Summary of Recycled Water Budget Expenses

As of June 30, 2016 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Revenue Budget

As of June 30, 2016 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Water Budget Expenses

As of June 30, 2016 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Sewer Budget Expenses

As of June 30, 2016 (96% of Budget Cycle)

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 35 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 4 of 29 

 

 
Investment Policy Disclosure 

 
The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment Policy and State Law. 
 
The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management (Bank of America 
Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements 
for the next six months. 
 
 

Questions or Comments 
 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Controller directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the Administrative 
Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may desire. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 36 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 5 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 37 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 6 of 29 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 38 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 7 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 39 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 8 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 40 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 9 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 41 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 10 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 42 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 11 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 43 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 12 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 44 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 13 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 45 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 14 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 46 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 15 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 47 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 16 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 48 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 17 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 49 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 18 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 50 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 19 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 51 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 20 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 52 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 21 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 53 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 22 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 54 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 23 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 55 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 24 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 56 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 25 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 57 of 99



 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 58 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 27 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 59 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 28 of 29 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 60 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-066 Page 29 of 29 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 61 of 99



 

Director Memorandum 16-067 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Erin Anton, Administrative Clerk 
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 

Subject: Authorization to Post Delinquent Accounts to the Property Tax Rolls of San 
Bernardino County and Riverside County 

Recommendation: That the Board adopts Resolution 2016-18 for San Bernardino County 
and Resolution 2016-19 for Riverside County Posting Delinquent 
Charges to the Property Taxes. 

 
Each year the Yucaipa Valley Water District posts delinquent utility service accounts to the 
property tax rolls for collection.  The property owners have been notified that the District intends 
to place all delinquent charges, fees and penalties to the property tax rolls. 
 
The attached resolutions provide detailed account information and the total delinquent amount for 
each parcel.   
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 62 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 2 of 9 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADDING DELINQUENT NON-PAID CHARGES TO THE ANNUAL PROPERTY 

TAXES LEVIED UPON THE PARCELS FOR WHICH THE CHARGES ARE 
DELINQUENT IN SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District has reviewed a report and 
statement of those delinquent unpaid charges for services within the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
which were delinquent and unpaid for sixty (60) days or more on July 20, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have decided that said delinquent and unpaid charges are to 
be included in the property tax levied on said property.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the report of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s delinquent and unpaid 
charges for service within the District which remain unpaid and delinquent for sixty (60) days or 
more on July 20, 2016, is hereby approved as the list of delinquent parcels. 
 
Section 2. That the unpaid and delinquent charges listed in said report, for the parcel of 
property, are fixed at the amount listed and shall be released administratively upon payment. 
 
Section 3. That the Secretary shall file with the County Auditor of the County of San 
Bernardino, and the Board of Supervisors of San Bernardino County, in the time and manner 
specified by the County Auditor and Board of Supervisors, a copy of such written report with a 
statement endorsed hereon over the signature of the Secretary that such a report has been finally 
adopted and approved by this Board of Directors and that the County Auditor shall enter the 
amount of such charges against the respective lot or parcel of land as it appears on the current 
assessment roll. 
 
Section 4. That the County Tax Collector shall include the amount of charges on bills for taxes 
levied against the respective lot and parcel of land and, thereafter, the amount of such unpaid 
and delinquent charges shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner by the same 
person as, together with and not separately from the general taxes, if any, for the District or the 
County of San Bernardino and shall be delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to 
the same delinquency penalties. 
 
Section 5. That any parcel collected through this method of collection remain on the Annual 
Property Tax Roll and charged the monthly sewer service charge annually. 
 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 63 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 3 of 9 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20thth day of July 2016 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Lonni Granlund,  

President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 64 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 4 of 9 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 65 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 5 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 66 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 6 of 9 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADDING DELINQUENT NON-PAID CHARGES TO THE ANNUAL PROPERTY 

TAXES LEVIED UPON THE PARCELS FOR WHICH THE CHARGES ARE 
DELINQUENT IN RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District has reviewed a report and 
statement of those delinquent unpaid charges for services within the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
which were delinquent and unpaid for sixty (60) days or more on July 20, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have decided that said delinquent and unpaid charges are to 
be included in the property tax levied on said property.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the report of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s delinquent and unpaid 
charges for service within the District which remain unpaid and delinquent for sixty (60) days or 
more on July 20, 2016, is hereby approved as the list of delinquent parcels. 
 
Section 2. That the unpaid and delinquent charges listed in said report, for the parcel of 
property, are fixed at the amount listed and shall be released administratively upon payment. 
 
Section 3. That the Secretary shall file with the County Auditor of the County of Riverside, 
and the Board of Supervisors of San Bernardino County, in the time and manner specified by the 
County Auditor and Board of Supervisors, a copy of such written report with a statement endorsed 
hereon over the signature of the Secretary that such a report has been finally adopted and 
approved by this Board of Directors and that the County Auditor shall enter the amount of such 
charges against the respective lot or parcel of land as it appears on the current assessment roll. 
 
Section 4. That the County Tax Collector shall include the amount of charges on bills for taxes 
levied against the respective lot and parcel of land and, thereafter, the amount of such unpaid 
and delinquent charges shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner by the same 
person as, together with and not separately from the general taxes, if any, for the District or the 
County of Riverside and shall be delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the 
same delinquency penalties. 
 
Section 5. That any parcel collected through this method of collection remain on the Annual 
Property Tax Roll and charged the monthly sewer service charge annually. 
 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 67 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 7 of 9 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of July 2016. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Lonni Granlund,  

President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 68 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 8 of 9 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 69 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-067 Page 9 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 70 of 99



 

Director Memorandum 16-068 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Brent Anton, Engineering Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2016-05 to Provide Sewer 
Service to the Private Development of Assessor’s Parcel Number 411-190-
036 

Recommendation: That the Board approves Development Agreement No. 2016-05 as 
presented. 

 
The proposed development consists of an approximately 18,800 square foot “Tractor Supply 
Company” retail building on a proposed single parcel totaling 4.07 acres located on the southwest 
corner of Calimesa Boulevard and Avenue L in the City of Calimesa. 
 
The District staff has been working with the developers for the preparation of a development 
agreement.  The specific conditions of service for this project are included in the attached 
agreement.  
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 71 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 2 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 72 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 3 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 73 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 4 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 74 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 5 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 75 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 6 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 76 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-068  Page 7 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 77 of 99



 

Director Memorandum 16-069 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Brent Anton, Engineering Manager 

Subject: Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 5 for Krieger & Stewart to Provide 
Additional Construction Management and Inspection Services for the 
Construction of Reservoir R-12.4, a 6.0 Million Gallon Water Storage 
Reservoir in Calimesa 

Recommendation: That the Board approves Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 5 for a 
sum not to exceed $102,600. 

 
On November 19, 2014, Task Order No. 5 was issued to Krieger & Stewart to provide the 
necessary construction management services during the construction of the new 6.0 million gallon 
water storage reservoir for a sum not to exceed $482,500 [Director Memorandum No. 14-092]. 
 
The proposed Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $102,600 is for additional construction 
management and inspection services needed to complete the project.  This additional cost will be 
funded from the FCC – Drinking Water Reservoir account. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 78 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 2 of 7 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 79 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 3 of 7 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 80 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 4 of 7 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 81 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 5 of 7 

 

 

INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S  
TASK ORDER AMENDMENT ISSUED TO  

KRIEGER & STEWART 
 

ORIGINAL TASK ORDER NO. 5 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 
Project Title: Construction Management Services for the 6.0 MG Reservoir R-12.4 
 
YVWD Project Number: P-02-279 – Construction of 6.0 MG Reservoir R-12.4 
 
Task Order Authorization Date: November 19, 2014 as Director Memorandum No. 14-092 
  
Consultant Name: Krieger & Stewart, Inc. 
Contact: Mr. Patrick Watson 
Address: 3602 University Avenue 

Riverside, California 92501-3380 
Telephone: (951) 684-6900 
Fax: (949) 587-1300 

E-mail: pwatson@kriegerandstewart.com 

Fed. Tax ID #: 95-2695159 
 

Summary of Task Order History 
 

Description Amount Reference 
Original Contract Amount: $482,500 Director Memorandum No. 14-092 
Proposed Amendment No. 1: $102,600 Director Memorandum No. 16-0xx 
Total Revised Contract Amount: $585,100  

 
This Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 5 is issued pursuant to that certain Agreement for 
Services by Independent Consultant between the Yucaipa Valley Water District ("Owner") and 
Krieger & Stewart, Inc. (“Consultant").   
 
The Owner and Consultant have entered into this Task Order Amendment as specifically set 
forth herein below, and except as specifically provided herein, the Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect as originally stated.  
 
1. Approval of the Task Order Amendment shall extend the term of the Agreement for 
Services by Independent Consultant until September 30, 2016. 
 
2. Tasks to be Performed & Compensation.  Consultant shall provide all labor, materials 
and equipment to perform the following task (check one):   
 

X See Table 1, attached hereto 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 82 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 6 of 7 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 5 
on the date indicated below. 
 

 Yucaipa Valley Water District   Krieger & Stewart, Inc. 
     
By:   By:  
     
Name: Lonni Granlund, Board President  Name: Patrick M. Watson 
     
Dated: July 20, 2016  Dated:  

 
 

  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 83 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-069 Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 84 of 99



 

Director Memorandum 16-070 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Jack Nelson, Assistant General Manager 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-20 Declaring Property, Equipment and 
Vehicles Surplus to the Needs of the Yucaipa Valley Water District  

Recommendation: That the Board Adopt Resolution No. 2016-20 as presented. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District staff periodically reviews property, equipment and vehicles to 
determine the continued need for various items.  By identifying the property, equipment and 
vehicles that are obsolete, or worn out allows the District staff to remove these items from the 
District property books and to dispose of the items in accordance with the law.  Removal of surplus 
and unnecessary items from the property books also allows the District to eliminate costs from 
our insurance coverage, thereby keeping insurance rates down.   
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The District will reduce its insurance costs slightly with the removal of the surplus property and 
maintenance costs will also be reduced by an undetermined amount. 
 
 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 85 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-070 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES SURPLUS  

TO THE NEEDS OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District routinely designates property and equipment as 
surplus prior to initiating the process of disposing of the surplus property/equipment. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District as follows: 
 

1. That the listing of property, vehicles and equipment attached as Exhibit “A” are 
surplus to the needs of the Yucaipa Valley Water District: 
 

2. That the General Manager is authorized to sell and/or dispose of said surplus items 
on behalf of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  

 
This resolution shall be effective on June 30, 2016. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 20th day of July 2016. 
 
 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  ATTEST: 

   
Lonni Granlund, President Board of Directors  Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 86 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-070 Page 3 of 3 

Yucaipa Valley Water District  Attachment “A” 
Resolution No. 2016-20   

 
 

Asset  
Identification 

Asset Description 

Pending 1998 Chevrolet Blazer 4x4 Utility Vehicle 
VIN 1GNDT13W5WK244827 
Odometer: 237,270 miles 

Pending 1988 Ford 2 Ton Dump Truck 
VIN 1FDNK74P0JVA02184 
Odometer: 35,824 miles 

Pending 1988 Chevrolet C-70 2 Ton Truck 
VIN 1GBM7D1F9JV114224 
Odometer: 24,458 miles 

Pending 1990 Ford 2 Ton Service Truck 
VIN 1FDWK74A7MVA04597 
Odometer: _____ miles 

Pending Konica Copier (Administration)  
Serial No. 93248624/1499 

Pending Konica Copier, (Engineering) 
Serial No. 93248651/1495 

Pending Minolta DI-850 copier, Model No. Di-850 
Serial No. 22001691 

Pending Minolta DI-520 digital copier w/SU3000, Model No. D1620 
Serial No. 3526280 

Pending Xerox Scanner, Model Xerox DocuMate 700 (YVRWFF) 
Serial No. 908TW1092HAU0100029 

Pending Hp Business Inkjet, Model 2300 (YVRWFF) 
Serial No. CN7104ZOM6 

Pending Swintec Adding Machine, Model 212 PD (YVRWFF) 
Serial No. 4800882 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 87 of 99



 

Director Memorandum 16-071 

Date: July 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Purchase of Imported Water for Calendar Year 2017 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the District staff to purchase imported water 
from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for Calendar Year 2017. 

 
On November 18, 2002, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District adopted Resolution 
No. 888 which describes the rules, regulations, and rates for the sale and delivery of supplemental 
water.  The adopted water rates consist of a $108/AF energy charge and a $40/AF conveyance 
charge for a total base price of $148/AF.  The following chart illustrates the discounts and 
surcharges that apply to water purchases. 

 

 Criteria Payment Method 
Discount / 
Surcharge 

Water 
Rate 

T
ie

r 
I 

P
la

n
 A

h
ea

d
 

Water ordered prior to 
December 31st for 
delivery in the following 
calendar year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/12th of 
the water ordered due at the 
end of each month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

15% Discount of 
base water rate 

$125.80/AF 

T
ie

r 
II

 
S

ea
so

n
al

 
S

to
ra

g
e 

Water ordered for 
groundwater recharge 
prior to December 31st 
for delivery during 
January through May of 
the following year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/5th of 
the water is due at the end of 
each Tier II month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

20% Discount of 
base water rate 

$118.40/AF 

T
ie

r 
III

 
S

p
o

t 
M

ar
ke

t 
P

u
rc

h
as

e Water ordered at any 
time during the calendar 
year for delivery in the 
same calendar year. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. 

25% Surcharge 
of base water 

rate 
$185/AF 

O
u

ts
id

e 
W

at
er

 
R

at
es

 Water purchased from 
SBVMWD for use 
outside of the boundary 
of SBVMWD. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. Rate based on 
DWR Bulletin 132 Appendix B. 

- - $378.89/AF 

 
Overall, SBVMWD offers very competitive water rates for planning ahead and paying for the 
requested water delivery within the first month of the year.  However, there is no guarantee with 
respect to receiving water ordered and paid for at the beginning of the year.  It is possible that 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 88 of 99



Director Memorandum No. 16-071 Page 2 of 2 

operational issues with the State Water Project and/or lack of rainfall in northern California can 
result in less water being delivered than paid for by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
 
Anticipated Water Delivery for 2017- San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 
The District staff requests authorization for the purchase of 6,000 acre feet of imported water at 
$125.80 per acre foot, for a total cost of $754,800 from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District.   
 
 
Anticipated Water Delivery for 2017 - San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District will submit an order for 550 acre feet of imported water from 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility.  An additional 2,800 acre feet of water will be requested for replenishment of 
the local groundwater basins at the Noble Creek Spreading Basins.  Based on the policies and 
practices of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the District staff is confident that the 550 acre 
feet will be delivered to the Yucaipa Valley Water Filtration Facility, but it is unclear whether the 
2,800 acre feet of imported water will be fulfilled pursuant to our request. 
 
The cost of water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is $309 per acre foot.   
 
 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Wholesale Water Service to Western Heights Mutual Water Co. 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District processes imported water at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility for the Western Heights Mutual Water Company.  Western Heights Mutual 
Water Company has requested the purchase of 807 acre feet of imported water from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for Calendar Year 2016.  The District staff is expecting 
a similar order for calendar year 2017. 
 
The quantity of water ordered by WHMWC will be included in the District’s imported water 
purchase with San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District but tracked separate from the 
District’s order for accounting purposes. 
 
 
Changing Conditions and Uncertainty 
 
The proposed water orders identified above are projections and maximum quantities expected to 
be ordered based on current summer demands and a variety of other issues.  If additional 
imported water is recommended to be purchased by District staff in the next 12 months, a 
separate memorandum will be presented for your consideration. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 89 of 99



Board Reports  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 90 of 99



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 91 of 99



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

62 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 
Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 

13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 92 of 99



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 93 of 99



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 94 of 99



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 95 of 99



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 96 of 99



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 97 of 99



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 98 of 99



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - July 20, 2016 - Page 99 of 99




